

Standing Committee on Veterans Affairs

ACVA • NUMBER 001 • 1st SESSION • 41st PARLIAMENT

EVIDENCE

Tuesday, June 21, 2011

Standing Committee on Veterans Affairs

Tuesday, June 21, 2011

● (0850)

[English]

The Clerk of the Committee (Ms. Julie Pelletier): Honourable members of the committee, I see a quorum.

I must inform members that the clerk of the committee can only receive motions for the election of the chair. The clerk cannot receive other types of motions, cannot entertain points of order, nor participate in debate.

[Translation]

We can now proceed to the election of the chair.

Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the chair must be a member of the government party.

[English]

I am ready to receive motions for the position of chair.

Mr. Stoffer

Mr. Peter Stoffer (Sackville—Eastern Shore, NDP): I'd like to nominate, from the beautiful district of West Nova, Nova Scotia, Greg Kerr as chair. It's not a bad area. It has the highest tides.

The Clerk: Are there any further motions?

It is moved by Mr. Stoffer that Greg Kerr be elected as chair of the committee.

(Motion agreed to)

The Clerk: I declare the motion carried and Greg Kerr duly elected chair of the committee.

Some hon. members: Hear, hear!

Mr. Peter Stoffer: I move that all ballots be destroyed and make it a unanimous election.

The Clerk: Just before inviting Mr. Kerr to take the chair, we'll now proceed to the election of the vice-chairs.

[Translation]

Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the first vice-chair must be a member of the official opposition.

I am now ready to receive motions for the election of the first vice-chair.

[English]

Mr. Sean Casey (Charlottetown, Lib.): I nominate, from the riding of Sackville—Eastern Shore, the inimitable Peter Stoffer.

The Clerk: Are there any further motions?

Is it the pleasure of the committee to adopt the motion?

(Motion agreed to)

The Clerk: I declare the motion carried and Peter Stoffer duly elected first vice-chair of the committee.

Some hon. members: Hear, hear!

The Clerk: Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the second vice-chair must be a member of an opposition party other than the official opposition. I am now prepared to receive motions for the position of second vice-chair.

Ms. Adams.

Ms. Eve Adams (Mississauga—Brampton South, CPC): Madam Clerk, I'd like to nominate the honourable member from Charlottetown.

The Clerk: It has been moved by Ms. Adams that Sean Casey be elected as second vice-chair of the committee.

[Translation]

Is it the pleasure of the committee to adopt the motion?

(Motion agreed to)

The Clerk: I declare the motion carried and Sean Casey duly elected second vice-chair.

Some hon. members: Hear, hear!

[English]

The Clerk: I now invite Mr. Kerr to take the chair.

The Chair (Mr. Greg Kerr (West Nova, CPC)): Congratulations to my colleagues. I look forward to working with you again and also for the first time.

Welcome to all the members. As we know, this is an introductory meeting to get some routine business out of the way. Obviously we're not going to get down to a lot of agenda activity today.

Is it the will of the committee now to proceed with the routine motions?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chair: And we're going to do them in the order they are in here?

The Clerk: That's the order that is suggested.

The Chair: There will be individual motions. We will start. I think you all have a copy of the one that's been sent out by the clerk's office.

The first is to appoint analyst services: that the committee retain, as needed and at the discretion of the chair, the services of one or more analysts from the Library of Parliament to assist it in its work.

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: We have one abstaining right off the bat. That's a bad sign.

The next one concerns the subcommittee on agenda and procedure, and it is before you. I understand there is a recommendation for a change in it.

Ms. Eve Adams: If there is consensus to create the subcommittee to deal with the agenda, I would move that the subcommittee be composed of the chair, the two vice-chairs, the parliamentary secretary, and one member of the government.

(0855)

The Chair: Are there any comments or questions?

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: Next is meeting without a quorum. Madam Adams, I understand you have a motion.

Ms. Eve Adams: Yes. This is in the event of reduced quorum. I would suggest that it be three members present to constitute a reduced quorum, and that those members include one member of the opposition and one member from the government.

The Chair: Are there any comments or questions on the motion?

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: Now, on opening remarks and questioning of witnesses, I believe there is a motion as well.

Ms. Eve Adams: I suggest on the rounds of questioning that the witnesses from any one organization shall be allowed 10 minutes to make their opening statement; that during the questioning of witnesses, there shall be allocated five minutes to the first round of questions, and I would propose the rotation, Conservative, NDP, Conservative, Liberal, Conservative, NDP, Conservative; and that the second round would be reduced to four minutes each and would be NDP, Conservative, NDP, Conservative. Then we would go through that again. That would bring us in at one hour, one minute.

The Chair: You heard the motion. Questions?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Could you repeat that?

Ms. Eve Adams: At five minutes, Conservative—

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Sorry, this is after the witness is finished.

Ms. Eve Adams: Correct. It would be Conservative, NDP, Conservative, Liberal, Conservative, NDP, Conservative. It would alternate between the government and the opposition: government, opposition, government, opposition.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: With respect, I would disagree with that. In my 14 years on the Hill, in every committee, whether it is a majority or a minority government, the opposition has always questioned first. It's

always been the opposition that starts the questioning. If you wish, we could go NDP first and then Conservative.

I remember the last time I was here, sitting in the back, we got whatever dregs were left. In fairness to Mr. Casey, we could go NDP, Conservative, Liberal, Conservative, NDP, Conservative. That way, eventually, at the end of the day, each member would have a chance. That's what we tried to do last time. Every member had at least one opportunity to ask a question or two. In terms of starting the rotation, it was always the opposition that started first.

Ms. Eve Adams: Could I suggest the following, then? We could start with the NDP, and then Conservative, Liberal, Conservative, NDP, Conservative, Conservative.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Fine. I agree with that.

Ms. Eve Adams: Then the next round would go to four minutes—NDP, Conservative, NDP, Conservative—and then we would start again. That way, everyone would have asked a question.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: And if there is an opportunity at the end, the Liberal member could ask another question.

Mr. Brian Storseth (Westlock—St. Paul, CPC): Could we leave that to the discretion of the chair?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Yes, at the discretion of the chair.

The Chair: Next on the list is Mr. Casey.

Mr. Sean Casey: This has come up in some other committees, and we've done a bit of homework on it. The last time there was a big majority, 2000 through 2004, the speaking time for all the parties was divided evenly.

What I suggest, and what I request for your consideration, is that at a minimum I be afforded an opportunity to question in both the first and second rounds. I ask that I be slotted in to the second round as well, that there be a spot for the Liberals.

The Chair: Reaction?

Mr. Storseth.

Mr. Brian Storseth: Mr. Chair, I don't want to belabour this point, but I believe that a committee is not necessarily representative of political parties but rather of members of Parliament. It is a right of all members of Parliament to be treated equally. You should be allotted your fair time, as is everybody else. I believe Mr. Stoffer is being very generous, more generous than the Liberals were in their official opposition role, by ensuring you get to ask the second opposition question.

One of the key principles, though, that we have to respect on all sides is that as members in this committee we all have parliamentary privileges and we should all be treated the same. Everybody should have the opportunity to ask a question before any member gets a chance to ask two questions.

The Chair: Okay.

Mr. Casey again.

● (0900)

Mr. Sean Casey: One of the difficulties I have with being allowed to ask questions only in the first round is that other things invariably will come up that will need to be followed up on. That's why I would ask that I be given an opportunity to question in the second round as well.

The Chair: Are there other comments?

Ms. Eve Adams: Mr. Casey, may I respectfully suggest that there will be four members of this committee who will only be entitled to ask questions for four minutes and that you will in fact receive a greater privilege than those four members?

I do concur with my colleague on the opportunity for everyone to pose at least one question before we go back and allow one person to start posing second questions. I think, though, that at the end of the day we do have an earnest desire to better the lives of our veterans, and we can leave some of this to the discretion of the chair. I would suggest that we go with what has been suggested. We would begin with the NDP, we would continue for five minutes each, and then the last four speakers would speak for four minutes each.

The Chair: Is there anything new to add to the discussion?

Mr. Stoffer.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: I'm just questioning why we have five minutes and not seven?

An hon. member: Yes.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: It's customary that it would go back to seven minutes each, or sometimes even 10 minutes. I wonder why it is five minutes to start the initial one. Usually you have seven minutes, and then the second round goes to five minutes. I just wonder why the parliamentary secretary would think that five minutes for the opening is sufficient.

The Chair: Before she answers, I would interject to say that everybody agrees that 10 minutes wouldn't work because you couldn't get all the members in. That would be excessive.

Do you want to respond?

Ms. Eve Adams: I was hoping that more individuals would have an opportunity to speak. The five minutes allow a hearty discussion. I have spoken with members of a number of other committees and there are a few committees that are actually moving towards five minutes.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: They are...? Okay, fair enough.

The Chair: Is there anything else new to add to the discussion?

Yes, Ms. Mathyssen.

Ms. Irene Mathyssen (London—Fanshawe, NDP): Mr. Chair, I would simply like to say that in the committee on which I served, we made sure in that case that the fourth party—in this case, the third party—had equal opportunity. I support Mr. Stoffer, inasmuch as I wouldn't like to set a precedent whereby the third or fourth party was cut out in the second round.

The Chair: I see.

Is there any response to that? It's not a new item. It supports Mr. Stoffer's suggestion.

Mr. Lobb.

Mr. Ben Lobb (Huron—Bruce, CPC): There's only one thing I'd like to add. In the last Parliament, when Mr. Stoffer was in the place where Mr. Casey is now, if there was time for any supplementary questions at the end or near the end of the meeting, Mr. Stoffer was afforded that time. It was at the discretion of the chair.

So as far as the routine motions go, I think we'd leave it as proposed, with the little change of the NDP leading off, and leave it to the discretion of the chair for any remaining time at the end of the meeting.

The Chair: That's fair enough.

I should also add that one of the things we have to do to make this work is to make sure that we start punctually, and that the witnesses, if we're all in agreement, aren't allowed to stray past their time. We might even encourage them to be as brief as possible, because that makes all of this work easier.

It's true, as Mr. Lobb said, that last time there were occasions when the government members felt they didn't have to use their last round, and certainly that was passed along, I think to Mr. Stoffer.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: I have just a couple of additions to the opening remarks. I agree with the time slot. It will obviously be agreed to, but there's one thing, Mr. Chairman. When you work with the whips and the other House leaders, can we be assured that as often as possible we'll get room 112 north as our meeting room? There's one thing missing there, which is the RCMP emblem, which will be there soon, but if we can get that room as much as possible...?

Secondly, could I recommend that when a minister appears we have those meetings televised? It gives the minister an opportunity to speak to a wider audience. As well, it gives all of us an opportunity to ask the minister or his or her staff the appropriate questions. Could those meetings be televised? That was the general practice with our meetings.

The Chair: Okay. I'll certainly take that under advisement.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Thank you.

The Chair: We've already started trying to get room 112. I think everybody agrees that it was the appropriate room.

As far as the minister is concerned, certainly—

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Oh, and—sorry, last one—I don't know what time the meetings are going to be. Have we worked out the time slot? ● (0905)

The Chair: This is the time: 8:45 on Tuesday and Thursday.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Okay, good.

The Chair: We're through on the motion.

Do you understand what the motion is? Does everybody have it now?

All those in favour of the motion, by a show of hands, please?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Okay: one opposed, as so recorded.

Thank you for that.

Turning now to document distribution, I don't know that there's any suggested change on that one from anywhere.

Ms. Eve Adams: I'll move it as is.

The Chair: All right.

So the motion on document distribution remains as it is before you—with, yes, "and that witnesses be advised accordingly". That was a bit of a....

Okay, thank you.

The next motion is on working meals.

Ms. Eve Adams: I'll move it as is.

The Chair: Are we agreed?

An hon. member: [Inaudible—Editor]

The Chair: Including chocolate milk; we understand that it's a

Mr. Peter Stoffer: No chocolate milk, no meeting; there's no quorum right there.

The Chair: Okay.

Did I actually take a vote on the previous motion?

My apologies; I got so excited about the working meals that I forgot.

Let's go back up to document distribution.

In favour, by a show of hands?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Thank you.

Going back to the motion on working meals, all those in favour?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: I know there has been some discussion on travel and accommodation, but I don't know that there has been any suggested change for this motion.

Ms. Eve Adams: Mr. Chair, I might simply and formally suggest to you, and leave this at your discretion, that we try to limit organizations to one representative each. So I would move the motion as it is currently but simply provide that as direction to the chair.

The Chair: Is there other discussion?

Mr. Stoffer.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: I'd have one slight amendment to it.

I noticed that last time when we had witnesses who came in, some of them required either a medical assistant or a spouse to travel with them. Take a veteran with post-traumatic stress disorder, for example; their spouse is with them sometimes. You may want to leave a little leeway in there that if we invite two, one of them may require a medical assistant or a person of substance beside them in order to get them through the meeting.

So sometimes you may, with certain exceptions, allow a third person to travel. It doesn't happen often, but it does happen.

The Chair: Is there any comment on that?

One of the things we wanted to try to limit was that we had a few occasions where two witnesses from one institution arrived. Many felt that one would have been enough unless they had a totally different presentation. I think that's the concern, that we don't double up.

Do you accept Mr. Stoffer's ...?

It doesn't need to be amended, I don't think; just keep it mind that there will be special circumstances. I'm sure the committee will be receptive to receiving those, if that's agreed.

Yes, Mr. Shory.

Mr. Devinder Shory (Calgary Northeast, CPC): Actually, Mr. Chair, this motion addresses what Mr. Stoffer is suggesting. It says "in exceptional circumstances, payment for more representatives be made at the discretion of the Chair".

The Chair: So you're suggesting that we actually change the wording, then?

Mr. Devinder Shory: No. It addresses it already.

The Chair: Oh, okay.

You're sharp.

All those in favour of the motion, by a show of hands?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Next is access to in camera meetings.

I know that you have before you a suggestion, but I understand that the PS has a recommended change.

Ms. Eve Adams: I would propose the following: that each committee member in attendance shall be permitted to have one staff member attend any in camera meeting. In addition, each party shall be permitted to have one staff member from a House officer attend in camera meetings.

The Chair: Is that clear with everybody? Are there any questions on that?

It's to give it a little more flexibility to the party House leaders.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: I have a certain amendment. It's not for the official record, though; it's more a personal one.

Ms. Eve Adams: I can only imagine.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Well, I notice this at all committees, and all parties are to blame for this. When we have witnesses, members of Parliament immediately go to their BlackBerrys and read the news of the day. They're not listening and they're not paying attention.

We heard from some veterans last time when they came here to make a presentation that when they looked up, half of us were looking down at our BlackBerrys and not looking at them. I just request that we keep on eye on that and monitor ourselves accordingly.

I know that the BlackBerry—I don't have one, and have never owned one in my life—is an addictive thing, and I know it's difficult for MPs and others to get their minds off these things. I just exercise caution that when we have witnesses, these are veterans, and they don't often get a chance to appear before a committee. We should at least do the best we can to look like we're listening.

(0910)

The Chair: I'd actually like to hear some comments, because I don't want to be going around the room saying, "Put your BlackBerry down", or something like that. By the way, that also means you can't use the phone during the meeting as well, then.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: That's difficult.

The Chair: Oh, okay, yes.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: It might be my mom. You never know.

The Chair: Are there any comments on that? I don't know if you want to read it into the record.

Brian.

Mr. Brian Storseth: I think Mr. Stoffer was just giving the committee advice. I don't think it was an actual official motion, was it?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: It's advice.

The Chair: It's advice to you folks and not for me. I understand. Okay.

Yes.

Ms. Eve Adams: I would simply state that I certainly concur. If veterans have been kind enough to come before us to share their experiences, to provide their best advice, obviously it certainly behooves us to respect them and their time.

I thank you for your advice. I certainly concur.

The Chair: If we're comfortable with that, then I'll leave it to the appropriate leaders on each side to monitor that.

You have the amended motion.

(Motion as amended agreed to [See *Minutes of Proceedings*])

The Chair: Transcripts of in camera meetings is next. I don't know if there are any suggested changes to this one.

Ms. Eve Adams: For transcripts of in camera meetings, I move that in camera meetings be transcribed and that the transcription be kept with the clerk of the committee for later consultation by members of Parliament.

The Chair: So it's simply members, and it doesn't extend to staff.

Ms. Eve Adams: That's correct.

The Chair: Are you okay with that? You have the amended motion before you. Please indicate whether you are in favour or opposed.

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: Now, on notice of motions, there was some discussion. Did we end up with—

Ms. Eve Adams: I propose the following: that 48 hours' notice shall be required for any substantive motion to be considered by the

committee, and that the motion shall be filed and distributed to members by the clerk in both official languages. Completed motions that are received by close of business shall be distributed to members the same day.

The Chair: Is everyone okay with that?

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: Those are the routine motions. What else do we...?

Sorry, just before that, the clerk advised me that what Mr. Stoffer actually raised on the cameras was that when a minister's attendance is motionable, the committee will have to make a decision as to whether it wants cameras automatically or whether it wants to leave that open until prior to that meeting.

I think you're suggesting it be automatic when ministers are here?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Yes. I don't know any minister who's ever said no to that opportunity. It gives us a chance, and it gives the wider audience a chance, to see the minister and to hear what the minister and departmental staff are saying. It's just an opportunity.

The Chair: Are there any comments?

Mr. Brian Storseth: Mr. Chair, I just have a question on the room. Is there that capacity in room 112 north?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: No, you'd have to move it to another room.

Mr. Brian Storseth: So you're actually looking....

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Yes.

Ms. Eve Adams: Mr. Chair, I think that's acceptable, but perhaps we could make it subject to best efforts.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: That's fair enough. There are certain circumstances. The minister's schedule is always up in the air. If we can actually get the minister at an appropriate time, that's always a good thing. I'm sure the chair is a decent fellow, and he will do the best he can to accommodate that, but there will be circumstances in which it can't happen and we'll have to live with that, and that will be fine.

The Chair: Ms. Mathyssen.

Ms. Irene Mathyssen: I understand that ministers have challenging schedules, but my experience has been that every time a minister has given testimony, we have indeed had it televised. I think that is very important, particularly in the case of veterans. They don't have access to this place, and they need to see the minister. They need to have that opportunity. So I would underscore that it is very important that the minister's appearance always be televised.

• (0915)

The Chair: Okay.

Mr. Storseth.

Mr. Brian Storseth: Thank you. I appreciate it.

It's not that anybody has anything to hide, but when you put in writing that something has to be a certain way all the time and it's a motion by the committee that we have to go through every time even if we don't want to do it, there will be circumstances, as we see sometimes, in which we need to go in camera and other circumstances that preclude us from having the cameras going.

I have to say that in the past two and half years I've served on this committee, it's been very collegial. It's not like some of the other committees I've been on in which things get fairly acrimonious. I'm sure the chair will ensure that we have cameras whenever possible, but there will be some circumstances in which it would not be appropriate for the cameras to be there. If we put this in motion and underscore that, then I think we end up tying our hands somewhat.

The Chair: Before we go further, could I respond?

My understanding, from Mr. Stoffer's reaction to the PS's intervention, is that we make the best effort we can to have cameras. That means making sure we schedule the right place that can be adapted and so on. It won't be automatic that there will be, but certainly the request will be made on behalf of the committee that cameras be made available when the minister's here, and there will be some flexibility. We don't want to cancel the meeting if it turns out we can't get a larger room or we're back in room 112 or something.

Can we leave it with that general understanding, that we'll make our best efforts to have the camera in place when ministers are in attendance? Is that reasonable? Is everybody comfortable with that?

We can reflect that in the motion.

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: What other stuff do you have for us here?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: [Inaudible—Editor].

The Chair: Before you go off on your tangent, this is, as I said, introductory. We have this wonderful clerk here, I think, for one meeting, and then we'll be changing again at some point. Personal matters are taking her away. It's got nothing to do with giving up on us already.

We wish you all the best, by the way, in that regard.

The Clerk: Thank you.

The Chair: I just want to indicate—and there will certainly be clerk services and analyst services—that it's really important that in the time before the September meetings all members really think carefully about the items they want brought forward for consideration by the committee. We have some time to work on that and think about it. I know there are some very important items, and there's also some unfinished business we didn't get through from the last time. But I think every member should have the time to reflect on it and have the discussions with their own folks to see what they want to bring forward.

I'd ask you all to take that seriously. Don't come back in September and say, "Oh, we should sit down and think about it." I think we want to come back fully prepared to move on the agenda as punctually as we possibly can. Okay?

You had another comment?

Mr. Peter Stoffer: There are just a couple of things.

Prior to the last meeting—and you were there as well, sir—there was a letter from the clerk that was going to go to the new chair regarding the unfinished business. It's now been almost five months that we've been waiting for the 24 resumés of the individuals on

VRAB, the Veterans Review and Appeal Board. Something that should take 12 hours has taken five months.

The Chair: Yes.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: I just reiterate again that it would be nice to have that.

One of the concerns we had—and you even expressed it yourself, sir—was with the qualifications of the people on the VRAB. We would just like to know who they are. That request was granted. We just haven't seen the documents yet.

The Chair: We'll discuss that along with the minister.

Your memory is very good, Mr. Stoffer. There was an election in between, which may have slowed the process down.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: Things happen, you know.

The Chair: These things happen.

Mr. Peter Stoffer: But there was also the letter from the clerk that was supposed to go to the new chair—remember?—regarding unfinished business.

The Chair: Okay, now that I'm chair, there's a letter somewhere. We'll have a look at that for sure.

Is that it?

Mr. Brian Storseth: There was a far more difficult parliamentary secretary in the last Parliament, so....

Mr. Peter Stoffer: The parliamentary secretary last time was hard to get along with.

An hon. member: Oh, oh!

The Chair: Thank you very much.

Is there any further discussion or business to bring before us?

Yes, Mr. Lizon.

Mr. Wladyslaw Lizon (Mississauga East—Cooksville, CPC): I would like to be advised on the budget that this committee is working with, on how it works and whether it is a set budget. I would like to sit on a committee that spends the money responsibly. It's always very easy to spend someone else's money, but I think we should show some responsibility in how the money is spent. I would like to be advised about the budget we're working with, how big it is, whether it is set at a certain amount, and how it works.

• (0920)

The Chair: Madam Clerk, do you want to answer that?

Go ahead

The Clerk: I was not prepared for that question, so of course I don't have the numbers with me right now. I'll certainly be able to prepare a paper and something can be distributed to you. Then, if you need more discussion on that, you can do that maybe in September with the next clerk.

The Chair: So a paper will be prepared and distributed amongst the members of the committee.

Ms. Eve Adams: Mr. Chair, I would just like to take this opportunity to thank everyone and to indicate what a huge honour it is to serve our veterans. I truly look forward to working with each and every one of you. Have a wonderful summer.

Thank you very much to the staff.

I wish Julie every happiness as she delivers her new baby girl.

The Chair: Thank you. I think you speak for all of us.

If there is no further business, could I have a motion for adjournment?

An hon. member: I so move.

The Chair: The meeting is adjourned.



Canada Post Corporation / Société canadienne des postes

Postage paid

Port payé

Lettermail

Poste-lettre

1782711 Ottawa

If undelivered, return COVER ONLY to: Publishing and Depository Services Public Works and Government Services Canada Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0S5

En cas de non-livraison, retourner cette COUVERTURE SEULEMENT à : Les Éditions et Services de dépôt Travaux publics et Services gouvernementaux Canada Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0S5

Published under the authority of the Speaker of the House of Commons

SPEAKER'S PERMISSION

Reproduction of the proceedings of the House of Commons and its Committees, in whole or in part and in any medium, is hereby permitted provided that the reproduction is accurate and is not presented as official. This permission does not extend to reproduction, distribution or use for commercial purpose of financial gain. Reproduction or use outside this permission or without authorization may be treated as copyright infringement in accordance with the *Copyright Act*. Authorization may be obtained on written application to the Office of the Speaker of the House of Commons.

Reproduction in accordance with this permission does not constitute publication under the authority of the House of Commons. The absolute privilege that applies to the proceedings of the House of Commons does not extend to these permitted reproductions. Where a reproduction includes briefs to a Committee of the House of Commons, authorization for reproduction may be required from the authors in accordance with the *Copyright Act*.

Nothing in this permission abrogates or derogates from the privileges, powers, immunities and rights of the House of Commons and its Committees. For greater certainty, this permission does not affect the prohibition against impeaching or questioning the proceedings of the House of Commons in courts or otherwise. The House of Commons retains the right and privilege to find users in contempt of Parliament if a reproduction or use is not in accordance with this permission.

Additional copies may be obtained from: Publishing and Depository Services
Public Works and Government Services Canada Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0S5
Telephone: 613-941-5995 or 1-800-635-7943
Fax: 613-954-5779 or 1-800-565-7757
publications@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca
http://publications.gc.ca

Also available on the Parliament of Canada Web Site at the following address: http://www.parl.gc.ca

Publié en conformité de l'autorité du Président de la Chambre des communes

PERMISSION DU PRÉSIDENT

Il est permis de reproduire les délibérations de la Chambre et de ses comités, en tout ou en partie, sur n'importe quel support, pourvu que la reproduction soit exacte et qu'elle ne soit pas présentée comme version officielle. Il n'est toutefois pas permis de reproduire, de distribuer ou d'utiliser les délibérations à des fins commerciales visant la réalisation d'un profit financier. Toute reproduction ou utilisation non permise ou non formellement autorisée peut être considérée comme une violation du droit d'auteur aux termes de la *Loi sur le droit d'auteur*. Une autorisation formelle peut être obtenue sur présentation d'une demande écrite au Bureau du Président de la Chambre.

La reproduction conforme à la présente permission ne constitue pas une publication sous l'autorité de la Chambre. Le privilège absolu qui s'applique aux délibérations de la Chambre ne s'étend pas aux reproductions permises. Lorsqu'une reproduction comprend des mémoires présentés à un comité de la Chambre, il peut être nécessaire d'obtenir de leurs auteurs l'autorisation de les reproduire, conformément à la Loi sur le droit d'auteur.

La présente permission ne porte pas atteinte aux privilèges, pouvoirs, immunités et droits de la Chambre et de ses comités. Il est entendu que cette permission ne touche pas l'interdiction de contester ou de mettre en cause les délibérations de la Chambre devant les tribunaux ou autrement. La Chambre conserve le droit et le privilège de déclarer l'utilisateur coupable d'outrage au Parlement lorsque la reproduction ou l'utilisation n'est pas conforme à la présente permission.

On peut obtenir des copies supplémentaires en écrivant à : Les Éditions et Services de dépôt

Travaux publics et Services gouvernementaux Canada Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0S5 Téléphone : 613-941-5995 ou 1-800-635-7943

Télécopieur : 613-954-5779 ou 1-800-565-7757 publications@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca http://publications.gc.ca

Aussi disponible sur le site Web du Parlement du Canada à l'adresse suivante : http://www.parl.gc.ca